SENIOR GOLFERS' SOCIETY OF THE FREE STATE CONSTITUTION

PREAMBLE

The Senior Golfers' Society of the Free State is an open society in that it does not discriminate based on ethnicity.

1. NAME:

The name of the Society shall be: "SENIOR GOLFERS' SOCIETY OF THE FREE STATE", hereinafter referred to as the Society.

2. OBJECTIVES:

The promotion of the game of golf in general, and more particularly, amongst those golfers who have attained the age of fifty-five years.

3. HEADQUARTERS:

The Headquarters of the Society shall be in Bloemfontein.

4. RULES AND REGULATIONS:

The Rules and Regulations governing the Society as Herein set forth shall be binding in all respects on all Members of the Society. The society accepts the rules of Golf as authorised from time to time by the Royal and Ancient Golf Club of St. Andrew's and accepts affiliation to the Senior Golfers' Union of South Africa, hereinafter referred to as the **Union**. These Rules and Regulations may not be amended or altered except by a two-thirds majority at an annual General Meeting or at a Special General Meeting called for that purpose.

5. MEMBERSHIP:

- (a) The total membership of the Society may be limited increased or decreased at the discretion of the Committee, but the quota of playing members of the Society shall not exceed that fixed by the **Union** in consultation with the Committee.
- (b) Election to membership shall be at the discretion of the Committee.
- (c) A person proposed for membership must be a member, with voting rights, of a recognised Golf Club within the Republic of South Africa, who shall have attained the age of fifty-five years.
- (d) The classes of membership are:

(1) **Honorary Life Member**, being a member so elected on the recommendation of the Committee at an Annual General Meeting or a Special

General meeting. The criteria for awarding Honorary Life Membership should include:

- Exceptional ongoing commitment and service to the Society and Union.
- Having served on the Committee, preferably also as President.
- Emphasis should be on honour and prestige, and the number of Honorary Life Members should not exceed 5 % of the active members at any one time.

(2) Active and Non-Active Veteran Members, being members over the age of 80 years.

(3) **Active Member**: An active member shall mean an amateur male golfer who has been admitted to membership of the Society. At the time of applying for admission he shall have attained the age of 55 years, preferably younger than 65 years and be a playing member, in good standing, of a club which is affiliated to a Provincial Union or Association of the South African Golf Union. A condition of his continued membership as an active member of the Society shall be that he retains his aforementioned membership of a golf club. A person older than 70 years is not eligible for nomination as a Member.

(4) **Non-Active Member**, being a member who through some circumstance or other, is unable to continue to take part in the activities of the Society but desires to retain membership thereof. He shall be entitled to take part in the ordinary and unofficial local meetings of the Society, but shall not be eligible to represent the Society at any tournament nor match, unless a need for such representation arises.

(5) **Associate Members:** At the discretion of the President and the Committee, a person who has exceeded membership age could, in exceptional circumstances be invited to participate in Seniors' golf activities (in accordance with the same conditions applicable to non-active members).

e) Any member who ceases for any reason to retain the qualification for membership set out in Clause 5(c) hereof, shall automatically cease to be a member of the Society, but, if he so desires, may be re-admitted as a Non-Active member, at the discretion of the Committee.

(f) The process for the proposal of a Prospective Member is attached as Annexure A.

(g) Priority in the election of a prospective member to membership may be granted where, in the opinion of the Committee, outstanding services to the game of golf have been rendered by him.

(h) The Committee may refuse any application for membership without assigning any reason therefore, and, in the event of such refusal, at least one year must elapse before a further application may be considered.

(i) The Committee may determine what action, if any, shall be taken where a member, without reasonable excuse fails, in its opinion, to maintain a sufficiently active

interest in the activities of the Society and in particular may, in its discretion, transfer him to the class of "Non-Active" member or end his membership. Activities include, monthly meetings, participation in tournaments with other Societies and National Championships.

(j) The liability of members is limited to the amount of their subscription and any monies owing by them to the Society. The Committee may, in its discretion, suspend the entrance fee at such times and for such periods as it may deem fit.

(k) A Member may resign after a written notification of such intent is submitted to the Society's Secretary. Any outstanding fees of the Member must be paid in full, The Committee may engage in a closure discussion with the Member, if requested. Members of the Society should be informed of the resignation at the first monthly meeting following the receipt of the resignation letter.

6. BEHAVIOUR OF MEMBERS:

The Committee shall have power, without assigning any reason therefore, to cancel the membership of any member whose conduct is considered to have been prejudicial to the interests of the Society, and a member so expelled shall have no claim whatsoever against the Society, any member thereof, or its Committee arising out of his expulsion. At the Committee Meeting at which such case is considered a majority of two-thirds of those present must agree to any decision to expel.

7. SUBSCRIPTIONS:

(a) Each member shall, subject to the provisions which appear hereafter, and according to his class of membership, pay to the Society an annual subscription which shall be determined from time to time by the Committee, provided that:

- (1) any variation shall only come into operation at the beginning of the next financial year,
- (2) the Committee may in its discretion waive payment of subscriptions by Veteran

Senior members, and

(3) no subscriptions shall be payable by Honorary Life Members.

(b) All subscriptions shall become due on the first day of January each year. If any member fails to pay his subscription within three months after such date, final notice thereof shall be sent to him by letter, email, SMS or a phone call, by the Treasurer, and if the subscription is not paid within one month after the date of posting of such notice, the defaulter shall automatically cease to be a member of the Society, and his name shall be erased from the books accordingly. The Committee may, however, reinstate such defaulter on payment of all subscriptions in arrears on such conditions as the Committee may deem fit. No member shall be entitled to any of the privileges of the Society if his subscription is over three months in arrears.

8. MANAGEMENT:

The affairs of the Society shall be governed and managed by a Committee of not more than twelve, including a President, Vice-President, Captain and Vice-Captain, Treasurer and Secretary. These officials, who shall be named the office-bearers, as well as previous holders of such offices, shall with the exception of the Secretary and Treasurer, be eligible for nomination for a further period of one year only to the same office.

9. ELECTION OF THE COMMITTEE:

(a) Nominations for the Committee must be submitted in writing prior to the Annual General Meeting, and shall be signed by two members of the Society, and must be in the hands of the Secretary not less than eight days before the date of the Annual General Meeting.

(b) Retiring members of the Committee shall be eligible for re-election without special nomination.

(c) In the event of more than six being nominated for election to the Committee, the election shall be by ballot of the members present and eligible to vote. Votes cast for less than six candidates to the Committee shall be invalid.

10. POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE:

- (a) The Committee shall remain in office until a new Committee has been elected, and shall have power to fill such vacancies (including appointing an Auditor), as may occur during their term of office.
- (b) The retiring Committee shall appoint the office bearers mentioned in Clause 8.
- (c) To donate, grant subsidies, or invest the funds of the Society for any purpose calculated to promote the interests and objects of the Society, and make donations for such other purposes as they may think fit.
- (d) To appoint paid officials if necessary and to fix their remuneration.
- (e) The Committee shall have power and authority to do any act, matter, or thing which could or might be done by the Society, excepting such matters as are specially reserved in these Rules and Regulations to be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting or Special General Meeting.
- (f) The Committee shall have the power to appoint Sub-Committees for any purpose, and to delegate to subcommittees such powers as may be deemed desirable.

11. MEETINGS OF COMMITTEE:

(a) The Secretary shall on the instructions of the President, or on a written request of at least two members of the Committee convene a Committee meeting, and failing a request for a meeting, the Committee shall meet at least once in every quarter.

- (b) The President, or in his absence, the Vice-President, shall be Chairman at all meetings of the Committee, and the Chairman of any meeting shall have a casting vote in addition to his deliberative vote.
- (c) At all meetings of the Committee the members present shall be a quorum.
- (d) Any member of the Committee absenting himself; without leave, for three consecutive meetings, of which due notice has been given, shall cease to be a member of the Committee.
- (e) The President and the Captain shall be ex-officio members of all Sub-Committees, and in their absence, the Vice-president and Vice-Captain shall be their respective alternates.

12. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

- (a) An Annual General Meeting of members, of which not less than fourteen days' notice shall have been given, shall be held at such time and place as the Committee may determine, not later than the end of February of each year.
- (b) A quorum for an Annual General Meeting of members shall be the members present.
- (c) The business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of members shall be:
 - (1) To confirm the Minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting, and of any Special General Meeting that was held.
 - (2) To receive the report of the Committee on the affairs of the Society up to 31st December preceding, together with a financial statement to that date, certified by the auditor.
 - (3) To elect a Committee for the ensuing year, as set out in Clause 8, and subject to provisions of Clause 10(b).
 - (4) To appoint an auditor for the current year, who shall preferably be a member of the Society.
 - (5) To elect life members, on the recommendation of the Committee, of which notification has been given in the notice calling the meeting.
 - (6) To announce the Home Course for the ensuing year.
 - (7) To consider any resolution concerning the affairs of the Society, of which due notice has been given, and any business concerning the affairs of the Society, which may arise out of the report of the Committee,
 - (8) The Committee may, however, at any meeting of members, bring forward any business which it considers to require an urgent decision, or action by members of the Society.
- (d) At the General Meetings the Chairman shall be the President, or in his absence, the Vice-president, the Captain, or the Vice-Captain, in that order.

13. VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS:

All matters requiring a decision at any General Meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes, unless otherwise provided for in these Rules and Regulations. In all cases of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall have a second or casting vote, and unless a ballot be demanded as hereinafter provided, the declaration by the Chairman of the result of the voting shall be conclusive. All votes shall be taken by a show of hands, but a ballot may be demanded by not less than ten ordinary members. The Chairman shall fix the time and mode of such ballot. The Meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of votes.

14. SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING:

- (a) The Committee may at any time call a Special General Meeting of members, by giving not less than fourteen days' notice, specifying the purpose for which the meeting is called. The Committee shall, in like manner, call a Special General Meeting of members, upon receipt of a requisition signed by twenty members of the Society, specifying the purpose for which such a meeting is desired. Subject to the powers of the Committee referred to in Clause 12, Para. (c) (8), no business, other than that specified in the notice, shall be transacted at such meeting, and no other resolution, unless strictly relating to such business, may be submitted to such a meeting.
- (b) A quorum for a Special General Meeting shall be twenty members present.

15. HOME COURSE:

The Committee shall determine the Society's home course for the ensuing year.

16. HANDICAPS:

A member's handicap shall be his lowest handicap as calculated by Handicaps SA.

17. EVENTS:

(a) The Committee may arrange matches and competitions between and for members of the Society, at such places, and on such dates as may be decided upon, from time to time, and may also arrange matches between this Society and teams of any recognised Golf Club, Golfing Society, or Golf Union.

(b) In any competition of the Society the Committee may, for the purpose of play, decide that members shall be classified as follows or combinations thereof:

- Class A 55 to 59 years
- Class B 60 to 64 years
- Class C 65 to 69 years
- Class D 70 to 74years

Class E – 75 years and older.

The abovementioned categories may be adjusted, to ensure that the numbers in each category are more evenly spread, to facilitate a better level of competition, based on fairness and reasonability.

(c) (1) CHAMPIONSHIP: Play in the Society's Annual Championship event is restricted to members of the Society, but visiting Senior Golfers from other centres shall be permitted to enter for certain handicap competitions prescribed by the Committee. The player returning the lowest gross score, irrespective of class, will hold the Senior Golfers' Championship Cup for the year.

(2) VETERANS' CUP: This shall be played for concurrently with the annual championship event. The winner of this floating trophy will be the member 65 years and older who returns the lowest gross score in the Annual Championship Competition. He will hold the cup for the specific year.

(d) In the event of a tie in any individual competition the competitor senior in age shall be declared the winner and, in any competition involving sides of two or more partners, that side the total combined ages of the partners of which is the greater, shall likewise be declared the winner,

(e) If a competitor wins two or more events at a meeting, he may accept one prize only, but he is entitled to choose the event in which he prefers to be the prize-winner. In the other event, or events, the runner-up will receive the prize which the winner forfeits under this rule.

18. ACTIONS AT LAW:

All legal proceedings by or against the Society shall be instituted in the name of the Society and be handled by the Committee.

19. INTERPRETATION:

In the case of doubt as to the meaning or interpretation of any Clauses of this Constitution, the Committee shall be the final arbiter and its decision shall be binding upon the Members.

20. Commencement:

This Constitution shall replace any previous Constitution and shall come into force on the 16th day of February 2023.

Annexure A

Procedure for Admission of New Members to the Society

This Annexure A has relevance to and refers to Clause 5(f) of the foregoing Constitution of the Society.

- 1. Any member who has been a Member of the Society for not less than two years may propose or second a Prospective Member.
- 2. A Member may only propose and/or second a Prospective Member once in a twelve-month period.
- 3. A Committee Member may propose or second a Prospective Member, on condition that he will not be allowed to take part in any discussions or decisions regarding this application.
- 4. The Proposer must obtain the "Proposal of a Prospective Member Form," a copy of which is attached, from any Committee Member.
- 5. The Proposer and Seconder must only propose or second a Prospective Member who:

 - a. They personally know very well and have regularly played golf with.
 b. Regularly takes part in club activities.
 c. Has the correct attitude towards the game of golf and whose honesty and integrity is beyond doubt.
- 6. The Proposer must bring the following to the attention of the Prospective Member:
 - a. The purpose and traditions of senior golf.
 - b. The commitment of regularly participating in monthly games and meetings.
 - c. The expectations of taking part in inter-provincials.
- 7. The Proposer must bring the provisions of Clause 5(i), hereunder for easy reference, to the Prospective Member's attention.

Clause 5 (i) of the Constitution of the Society reads -:

"The Committee may determine what action, if any, shall be taken where a member, without reasonable excuse, fails, in its opinion, to maintain a sufficiently active interest in the activities of the Society and in particular may, in its discretion, transfer him to the class - " Nonactive " member or end his membership. Activities include monthly meetings, participation in tournaments with other Societies and National Championships".

- 8. The "Proposal of a Prospective Member Form", completed in all its details and signed by the Proposer and Seconder, must then be returned to the Secretary, together with any recommendations and other information that may be of assistance in considering the application.
- 9. The Committee will thereupon consider the application, and should it decide that the application may be proceeded with, the Secretary will notify all members, in writing, of the nomination.
- 10. In the written notification to Members, they will be afforded 14 days to either

object or support the election of the Prospective Member, which objection or support must carefully be considered by the Committee in arriving at its decision to accept or reject the proposal.

- 11. At the first Committee Meeting after this notice period, the Committee will finally consider the application. Should it be satisfied that the Prospective Member would be a desirable and active member, the Secretary will advise the prospective Member that he has been accepted as a member of the Society.
- 12. a Should a valid objection be received within the notice period, the objecting Member will be invited to, in person, make representations to the Committee at the meeting where the final decision will be taken.
- 13. The Prospective Member must sign a "Letter of Acceptance," a copy of which is attached.
- 14. The Prospective Member must be issued with the "Senior Golfers' Society of the Free State Information Document", a copy of which is attached.
- 15. A The Prospective Member must be issued with the "Senior Golfers' Society of the Free State Constitution."
- 16. The Prospective Member must be issued with the "SGUSA's Member Handbook".

The Secretary will at the same time inform the Prospective Member and the Captain and Vice-Captain that the Prospective Member will be invited to play a round of golf with the President, Vice - President or Captain and to meet the Committee and other members at the next monthly meeting of the Society.

SENIOR GOLFERS' SOCIETY OF THE FREE STATE						
	ULIION		A COMPANY AND A CO			
Proposal of a Prospective Member						
Clause 5 of the Society's Constitu	ution states:- "The Proposer and Second	ler of a Prospective Member, r full particulars of him		person being proposed, and must p	rovide the Committee with	
fails, in its c	Constitution of the Society reads -: "Th opinion, and in its discretion, to maintain a member or end his membership. Activities	a sufficiently active interest in the interest in the include monthly meetings, part	he activities of the Society, and in par ticipation in tournaments with other S	ticular may, transfer him to the clas ocieties and National Championshi	ŝ -	
	The Proposer is to o	complete this form and	l return it to the Society's So	ecretary		
Surname		Christian Names				
E-mail Address			Cell Phone Number			
Identity Number		SA Player ID		Wife / Partners Name		
Home Address						
Profession/Occupation	fession/Occupation (Former profession/ccupation if retired)					
Golfing History -:	How long has the proposed memb	er played golf		Current H/cap Index		
Member Present Club/s			Period of membership			
_			Period of membership			
Member Previous Club/s			Period of membership			
			Period of membership			
Golf Committee service Other services rendered						
to golf and other sports						
inclusive representation						
	Declaration	:				
The proposed member has indicated	his willingness to -:		1			
	n the 3 rd Wednesday of each month. y games and the Senior Nationals if qualifi	antina requiremente are met			î.	
 Commit to the Seniors ethos an 		cation requirements are met.	Proposed Members Signature		ers Signature	
 Declares that he is conversant with the Rules of Golf and the etiquette of the Is aware of Clause 5(i) above 		e game.		Date :		
After consultation with the p	proposed member the	Mark choice below		References :		
the Proposer and Seconder are of the opinion that that the proposed person will -:				nt Senior Members, with who	m the proposed	
		Proposer / Seconder	is well acquainted, who the Committee can contact for a reference:			
Actively participate in the Society's events		Y - N / Y - N		1	<u></u>	
Be prepared to participate in away events		Y-N / Y-N		I		
Mix with, and be compatable with exisiting Members		Y - N / Y - N				
PROPOSER			SECONDER			
Signature		Date	Sign	ature	Date	
The Proposer or Seconder may be Committee Members, and both of them must be members of at least two (2) calender years standing, and not have proposed or seconded another candidate during the last 12 month period						

THE FREE STATE SENIOR GOLFERS' SOCIETY



ACCEPTANCE OF MEMBERSHIP

To THE SECRETARY

I, (full names in block letters) ____

hereby accept membership of the Senior Golfers' Society of the Free State.

ID No -: _____ SA Player Number -: ____

I have been made aware of, and am thus fully aware that the privilege of becoming a member of the SENIOR GOLFERS' fraternity requires DEDICATION, COMMITMENT and PARTICIPATION in Senior activities. We are all involved herein due to the love for the game of golf and the camaraderie and traditions that form part thereof.

By accepting the invitation to be inducted as a member to this Society, I accept myself as being bound to the following -:

- 1. To participate in our monthly meeting played on the 3rd Wednesday of a month.
- 2. Travel to away games (commit to a minimum of 2 away games per annum).
- 3. Where, when and if possible, to become involved in the informal mini seniors games played on every Tuesday except on the week in which our monthly meeting

takes place.

- 4. Pay the annual subscription fees and also any other fees that become payable timeously.
 - 5. Apologizing in writing or by any manner requested by your committee for default and/or nonparticipation in all formal games/functions is an essential expectation.
 - 6. To adhere to the Seniors Dress Code and traditions.

And by the provisions of clause 5(i) of the Society's Constitution:

"The Committee may determine what action, if any, shall be taken where a member, without reasonable excuse, fails, in its opinion, to maintain a sufficiently active interest in the activities of the Society and in particular may, in its discretion, transfer him to the class - "Nonactive " member or end his membership. Activities include monthly meetings, participation in tournaments with other Societies and National Championships"

I declare that I am conversant with the Rules of Golf and the etiquette of the game.

.....

Date/...../20.....